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FF&E for Several District of Columbia Public Schools
DCAM-14-NC-OI09

Addendum No.5
Issued: March 7, 2014

This Addendum No.5 is issued and hereby published on the DGS website on March 7, 2014.
Except as modified hereby, the Request for Proposal (RFP) remains unmodified. All other terms
and conditions remain unchanged.

JWCi2
Associate Director/Contracting Officer

Itern#l
A.4 Procurement Schedule:

Delete:

A.4 Procurement Schedule
The schedule for this procurement is as follows:

•Issue RFP
•Pre-proposal Conference
•Last Day for Questions/Clarifications
•Proposals Due
•Sample Products Delivered
•Notice of Award

- February 12,2014
- February 20,2014 10:30 am
- February 25, 2014
- March 6,2014 at 2:00 pm
- March 11,2014 at 3:00 pm
- March 25,2014

Insert:
A.4 Procurement Schedule
The schedule for this procurement is as follows:

•Last Day for Questions/Clarifications
•Proposals Due
•Sample Products Delivered
•Notice of Award

- March 7, 2014
- March 17,2014 at 2:00 pm
- March 27, 2014 at 3:00 pm
- April 14,2014
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Item #2
Executive Summary

Delete:
The selected manufacturers shall be required to make furniture available at the agreed-upon
prices exclusively to dealers/installers authorized by the Department to manage logistics, and
assume financial and schedule responsibility for complete installation of the FF&E products.

Insert:
The selected manufacturers shall be required to make furniture available at the agreed-upon
prices exclusively to dealers/installers authorized by the Department to manage logistics and
assume schedule responsibility for complete installation of the FF&E products. The District will
issue Purchase Orders to the manufacturers in care of the dealers/installers.

Item#3
B.1.1 Performance Specifications, 2nd paragraph

Delete:
To the extent that an item may contain minor variations from the requirements set forth in the
Performance Specifications, such variance should be specifically identified (preferably by
highlighting the particular requirement in the Performance Specification) and a detailed
explanation provided as to why a waiver is appropriate (item is functionally equivalent). The
decision to accept the variation or deviation will be made by the Department in its sole and
absolute discretion.

Insert:
To the extent that an item may contain minor variations from the Performance Specifications,
such variance should be specifically identified (preferably by highlighting the particular
requirement in the Performance Specification) and a detailed explanation provided as to how the
item is functionally equivalent. The decision to accept the variation or deviation will be made by
the Department in its sole and absolute discretion.

Item #4
Delete: Attachments A and B in their entirety:
Insert: Attachments A and B, Exhibits 1 and 2 to this Addendum.

Item #5
Attached to this Addendum is the Form of Contract (Exhibit 3). THE TERMS OF THE FORM
OF CONTRACT SHALL PREVAIL OVER THE RFP. TO THE EXTENT THERE IS AN
INCONSISTENCY BETWEEN THE FORM OF CONTRACT ISSUED HEREWITH AND
THE RFP, THE FORM OF CONTRACT SHALL GOVERN.
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Item #6
Questions and Responses

Question # 1
Will deposits be paid to the authorized CBE dealers by DC Public Schools, which in turn can
be passed on to the manufacturers?
Answer
See Item #2 on Addendum No.5.

Question # 2
What happens in the (unlikely) event that the authorized CBE dealers do not have a large line
of credit with the manufacturers chosen?
Answer
See Item #2 on Addendum No.5

Question # 3
Do we have to be CBE certified to bid?
Answer
No

Question # 4
Since we are not located in the District and the furniture is manufactured in Germany and if
you are having someone install under another contract, do we have to comply with the 51%
being from DC?
Answer
The First Source requirement applies as stated in the RFP for new hires created as a result of
the manufacturers work.

Question # 5
Do we have to quote all line items?
Answer
No.

Question # 6
Manufacturers will not be selling direct to DCPS, the Dealers will be. Is it then correct to
assume sections B4, B5, B6, Section C1, and Section G pertain to dealers/installers awarded
in procurement B?
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Answer
Manufacturers must comply with sections B4, B5, B6, Section C1, and Section G.

Question #7
Regarding the A.2 Form of Contract - the RFP states that it will be provided by Addendum.
When will we receive?
Answer
The Form of Contract is attached to this Addendum.

Question #8
The fixed unit prices need to be held for the base period and then an option of (3) one year
extensions. Could you please state the dates for the base period?
Answer
The base period will be date of award to 12 months thereafter.

Question #9
Manufacturers will have to register with DGS. Could you please tell us how we register or if
we are a current manufacturer/supplier if we are already registered?
Answer
Manufacturers who are not already registered with the District will be registered upon
contract award.

Question #10
Can DGS submit a list ofFY2014 and FY2015 schools that will be part of this contract?
When will a list of projects School name be provided?
Answer
They will be provided upon contract award.

Question #11
Per the Pre Bid Conference, can you provide a list of the selected certified CBE firms and
their contact information?
Answer
See Addendum No.2 sign-in sheet. for CBE firms who are currently being considered by the
Department.

Question #12
Will DGS provide a sample contract before the award date?
Answer
See response to item No . .7.

4



***
DGS

GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

* * *
THI DIPARTllliNT 01"
GiIiNERAL •• RVIOII

Question #13
Will District residents' participation goals be required per project? If so what is the

requirement?
Answer
See response to item No.4.

Question #14
Who is responsible for coordinating, and providing products not covered under this RFP.
Answer
The District will be responsible for coordinating and providing items not covered under this

RFP.

Question #15
If awarded will dealers be given drop dead order dates to achieve committed delivery dates.
If dealer does not place order by manufacturer deadline, please confirm who is responsible
for any penalties/damages.
Answer
The District will determine responsibility and liability on a case by case basis.

Question #16
Will dealers be assigned by DGS to specific projects or will they have to bid each

opportunity?
Answer
The District has not determined the process for assigning the projects.

Question #17
Who is responsible for insuring that product supplied is approved and accepted by DCPS Ed
Specs.
Answer
The District will ensure the products supplied are approved and accepted by DCPS Ed Specs.

Question #19
Please clarify who is responsible for errors in orders related to size, quantity, color and
product offerings.
Answer
The District will determine on a case by case basis.
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Question #20
Are we allowed to use our own installers or does someone from Dept. of General Services
give this approval?
Answer
No, Manufacturers will not be able to use their own dealer/installers.

Questions #21
Base period references (3) 1 year options. How does this work? Do both parties need to
agree before option to renew is approved?
Answer
The decision to exercise an Option is at the sole discretion of the District.

Question #22
We have not received the 'Form of Contract' to review.
Answer
See response to Question #4.

Question #23
Is it only furniture manufactures who are allowed to bid this? If so each manufacture cannot
provide all products. How will this be handled?
Answer
The RFP is open to any manufacture that can provide the furniture listed on Attachment B.

Question #24
Management and Coordination - Is the contractor only managing the products they bid on?
Answer
Yes

Question #25
Are the manufactures required to attend progress meetings? If so most manufactures won't
be able to bid.
Answer
Manufacturers are expected to provide all goods and services required to meet the terms,
conditions, and intent of the Formal Contract.
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Question #26
Key Personnel Wenger (as the contractor) isn't able to add additional support for
coordination of delivery or changes to key personal without Dept. of General Services
approval?
Answer
The District expects to be notified of any changes to key personnel.

Questions #27
If Company X is the contractor we may not be able to abide by the hiring of 51% of the
residents in DC, how does this impact bidding capabilities?
Answer
See response to Question #4

Question #28
List all employment vacancies, what vacancies? On the specific projects the contractor is
awarded? Will you be providing sample compliance forms for the monthly submittal?
Answer
See response to Question #4 and Attachment C- First Source Agreement.

Question #29
Oral Presentation - is this required of out of state manufactures? Can this be excluded?
Answer
Oral presentation will be required at the District's discretion.

Question #30
Please provide District resident participation goal required for this project.
Answer
The District participation goal is 51% if applicable to the manufacturers, see response to
Question # 4 and Attachment C- First Source Agreement.

Question #31
Does this allow us to change the price each year upon renewal date? Do both parties need to
agree before option to renew is approved?
Answer
The Manufacturers shall indicate the price for the base and each option year on Attachment
A-Unit Price Spreadsheet.
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Question #32
In Attachment B, for S7, description is Chair-High Back (Principal Only), but in Attachment
A pricing spreadsheet, description of S7 states "Stool - Teacher"
Answer
Description on Attachment A has been updated to align with the description on Attachment
B.

Question #33
In Attachment B, for S12, description is Stool Adjustable, but in Attachment A pricing
spreadsheet, description ofS12 states "student alternative seating options"
Answer
S12 description on Attachment A, has been updated to align with the description on
Attachment B.

Question #34
In Attachment B under SII Stool, and S12 Stool Adjustable, spec states "one -piece
contoured shell." Will you accept a 2-piece contoured seat and back as an equal? In the
event of wear and tear, it will be easier to replace the seat and/or the back. If a one - piece
shell, the entire unit has to be replaced.
Answer
Yes.

Question #35
In Attachment B under S9 Music Posture Chair, you have listed under features "optional
folding tablet arms, and optional book rack." Do you want these options to be included in
the price of the chair in Attachment A? There is no separate lines to add these options as
additionally price items on the spreadsheet.
Answer
Provide pricing for the accessory only in the Attachment A for S9 Music Posture Chair.

Question #36
The way I understand the bid documents, we are to deliver all material to your designated
installer for his installation. Is this correct?
Answer
Products are expected to be delivered to the appropriate school site and into the possession of
the dealers/installer. Deliver location is Garnet- Patterson School; 200110TH St., NW (AT
THE Intersection OF V St.) Washington, DC 20001. Offerors are instructed to utilize
the school parking lot bordering and accessed from Vermont Ave.
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Question #37
Desks - do they have to have cantilever legs?
Answer
Refer to Performance Specifications, Attachment B for guidance.

Question #38
What are the dimensions for desk C9 and are other shapes acceptable?
Answer
Refer to Performance Specifications, Attachment B for guidance.

Question #40
Item T6 - are other shapes acceptable?
Answer
Refer to Performance Specifications, Attachment B for guidance.

Question #41
Am I correct in that all items highlighted in green will require full size samples delivered to
your office?
Answer
Yes, Full sized samples are required. Deliver location is Garnet- Patterson School; 2001
10TH St., NW (AT THE Intersection OF V St.) Washington, DC 20001. Offerors are
instructed to utilize the school parking lot bordering and accessed from Vermont Ave.

Question #42
Who will be the POC to schedule the deliveries with?
Answer
Primary "POC"Mr. David Anderson (202.439.8271); Secondary "POC" - Mr. Roger
Asterilla 202.309.2247; back-up "POC" Mr. Mel Butler (267.304.4716) Or Designee

Question #43
Will this person be the same POC to arrange pick-up with?
Answer
Arrange Final Pick-up thru Mr. David Anderson 202.439.8271

Question #44
What is the best way to contact him/her?
Answer
Mr. David Anderson 202.439.8271
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Question #45
Is there a loading dock or freight elevator at the designated location?
Answer
Entry to school (from Parking Lot) Leads directly to slight ramp up to corridor to the
designated location (gymnasium- Western End)

Question #46
How long will the samples be required to remain on site?
Answer
No longer than two weeks from delivery date.

Question #47
How will the sample pick-ups be coordinated?
Answer

Arrange final pick-up thru Mr. David Anderson 202.429.8271

Question #48
Will all furniture from the vendors arrive at the same time or is there a larger window to
work with to ensure building access?
Answer
The Department will arrange for a "morning window + timeslot" and an "afternoon Window
+ Timeslot" For Delivery for Required Sample Products. Offerors will be assigned a timeslot
based on a first come/first assigned basis. The Morning timeslot ranges from 9:00am to
11am, the afternoon timeslot ranges from 1:OOpmto 3:OOpm. Offerors may contact Mr.
David Anderson on 202.429.8271 to reserve a timeslot.

Question #49
Please provide a list of schools/Facilities for which this RFP is intended for?
Answer
The list of schools will be provided to the successful offeror(s).

Question #50
S13 is on Attachment A, but not part of Attachment B, will we be receiving a specification
sheet on S13?
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Answer
S13 Dollies have been extracted from this procurement. Attachment B has been updated to
reflect this change.

Question #51
C5 is on Attachment A, but not part of Attachment B, will we be receiving a specification
sheet on C5?
Answer
C5 Cart - Lockable has been extracted from this procurement. Attachment B has been
updated to reflect this change.

Question #52
C24 is on Attachment A, but not part of Attachment B, will we be receiving a specification
sheet on C24?
Answer
Attachment B has been updated to include a Performance Specification for C24.

Question #53
TIl is on Attachment A, but not part of Attachment B, will we be receiving a specification
sheet on TIl?
Answer
TIl has been updated on Attachment A to T7 to align with Attachment B.

Question #54
T14 is on Attachment A, but not part of Attachment B, will we be receiving a specification
sheet on T14?
Answer
Attachment B has been updated to include a Performance Specification for T14.

Question #55
On Attachment A, T12 states a horseshoe table, but in Attachment B the Horseshoe table is
T6 and the T12 is a Taping/Message Table, which is correct?
Answer
T12 has been updated on Attachment A to T6 to align with Attachment B.
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Question #56
On Attachment A, T13 states a Science table, but in Attachment B the Science table is T8,
T13 not provided in Attachment B, which is correct?
Answer
T13 has been updated on Attachment A to T8 to align with Attachment B.

Question #57
Item S5 is listed on Performance Specifications and not on Attachment A. Please clarify?
Answer
S5 has been extracted from this procurement. Attachment B has been updated to reflect this
change.

Question #58
Item S6A is listed on Attachment A, but is not listed in the Performance Specifications. Is
there a PS Sheet for this item? Please clarify.

Answer
6A has been extracted from this procurement. Attachment A has been updated to reflect this
change.

Question #59
Item S7 Performance Specification does not match the item listed on Attachment A. Please
clarify.
Answer
Reference the answer to question #42 for clarity.

Question #60
Item S12 Performance Specification Sheet refers to a Stool Adjustable but the Attachment
says it's Student Alternative Seating Options". This will need to be more clearly explained. If
this in fact means" Student Alternative Seating Options", please provide more details and
Specifications so this item(s) can be fully evaluated.
Answer
Reference the answer to question 4. S12 has been updated in Attachment B.

Question #61
Item C2 is not listed on Attachment A, but is contained under the Performance Specification
sheet. Please clarify.
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Answer
C2 has been extracted from this procurement. Attachment B has been updated to reflect this
change.

Question #62
Item C9 and Item C9a are listed in the Performance Specifications and appears on
Attachment A as "Desk - Student (Include different shapes). Since samples of these items
must be delivered by March 11,2014 ( location to be determined), can you please explain the
term different shapes as in our industry this could mean many things. We refer to this as
Collaborative Learning and we offer different shapes and sizes oftops, various leg designs,
and construction. In addition, under Item SI Chair-Student, you are requesting a 13" Chair
for Pre K, a 15" Chair for 1st thru 3rd, and an 18" for 4th -12th with a book rack, you may
want to consider a fixed height student desk for each of these desks which would be
conducive to Healthy Movement in the classroom. Please clarify.
Answer
Provide unit pricing for both shape types. Attachment A has been updated to reflect a 40/60
split

Question #63
C11 is not listed on Attachment A, but is contained in under the Performance Sheet. Please
clarify
Answer
C11 has been extracted from this procurement. Attachment B has been updated to reflect this
change.

Question #64
C15 is not listed on Attachment A but is listed under the Performance Specification Sheet.
Please clarify.
Answer
C15 has been extracted from this procurement. Attachment B has been updated to reflect this
change.

Question #65
C17 is not listed on Attachment A but is listed under the Performance Specification Sheet.
Please clarify

13



***
DGS

GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

* * *

Answer
C17 has been extracted from this procurement. Attachment B has been updated to reflect this
change.

Question #66
C21 is not listed on Attachment A but is listed under the Performance Specification Sheet.
Please clarify.
Answer
C21 has been extracted from this procurement. Attachment B has been updated to reflect this
change.

Question #67
C24 is listed on Attachment A but there is no Performance Specification Sheet for this item.
Since this is an item which is requires a sample, can we get Specification Sheet ASAP?
Please clarify.
Answer
Reference the answer to Question #53 for clarity.

Question #68
Tl Performance Sheet calls for a 36" Square table size and a 36"X72" rectangular table, but
Attachment A calls for a 42" Round table and a 36"X72". Please clarify ASAP as these are
also hilted in green and we have to get samples made a quickly as possible. Also, can you
explain our you want us to submit prices on Attachment A when you ask for MULITPLE
ITEMS AND THERE IS NO LINE FOR IT? Should we use two separate sheets? Please
clarify.
Answer
Attachment A has been updated provided pricing accordingly.

Question #69
T4 , T6, T7 and T8 are not listed on Attachment A, but is included in the Performance
Specification Sheets. Please clarify.
Answer
T4 has been extracted from this procurement. Attachment B has been updated to reflect this
change. Reference the answers to Question 56 for clarity. Reference the answers to question
#54, question #56 and question #57 for clarity on items T7, T6 and T8.

Question #70
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TIO is listed on Attachment A as Tables, Cafeteria W/Bench Rectangular, but on the
Performance Specification Sheet it says" Rectangular table size refer to bid specifications".
WHERE CAN WE FIND THOSE SPECIFICATIONS? There are no top sizes. Please
clarify.
Answer
Performance Specification has been added for TI o.

Question #71
Tl2 is listed on Attachment A as Horseshoe Reading Table, but on the Performance
Specifications sheet it shows a Table-Taping/Massage. Can you please clarify which item
you want us to bid on and if it is the Horseshoe Table we need the specifications and sizes
ASAP as this is listed as a Required item which we have to provide a sample? Please clarify.
Answer
Reference the answer to question #56 for clarity.

Question #72
T13 Science Lab Tables and Tl4 Elementary Art Tables are listed on Attachment A but there
are no Performance Specification sheets for these items. Can you please provide the
Specifications for these items ASAP as they both are highlighted in Green which requires a
sample? Please clarify.
Answer
Reference the answers to question #55 and question #57 for clarity.

Question #73
Cot-FI, F12b, and Fl2c are listed on the Performance Specifications Sheets but is not listed
on Attachment A. Please clarify.
Answer
Cot-FI has been extracted from this procurement. Attachment B has been updated to reflect
this change. Separate lines have been added to Attachment A to align with Attachment B for
items F12a, Fl2b and Fl2c

Question #74
Fl6 and Fl9 are listed on Attachment A but there are no Performance Specification Sheets
for these items. Can you please provide those Specifications ASAP? Please clarify.
Answer
Fl9 has been extracted from this procurement. A Performance Specification has been added
for F16.
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Question #75
There are no specs for items C24, TIl, & T14.
Answer
Reference the answers to question #53, question #54 and question #55 for clarity on items
C24, TIl and T14.

Question #76
There are some items shown in the performance spec but not list in Schedule A. We assume
there are none req'd.
Answer
The Performance Specification has been updated to align with Schedule A.

Question #77
Item S 12 - Is a back required?
Answer
Reference the answer to Question #61.

Question #78
Item C 6 Is electric required in this unit? Is there a picture of this unit.
Answer
Yes, electric is required. A picture is not available of the unit.

Question #79
We assume on baskets are required for chairs under 18" One place says 15" and up but the
schedule says 18".
Answer
Provide pricing for an optional basket for the 15" and the 18" chair. Attachment A has been
updated accordingly.

Question #80
There are no specs for items S6a, C5, C24, TIl, & T14. Please kindly provide the
specifications that are requested.
Answer
Reference the answers to Question #58, question #52, question #53, question #54 and
question #55 for clarity on items S6a, C5, C24, TIl and T14.

Question #81
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There are some items shown in the performance spec but not list in Schedule A. We assume
there are not required?
Answer
The Performance Specification has been updated to align with Schedule A.

Question #82
Item S12 - Is a back required on this stool?
Answer
Reference the answer to Question #60.

Question #83
Item C6 Is electric required in this unit since it is described as "Multimedia"? Is there a
picture of this unit?
Answer
Yes, electric is required. A picture is not available of the unit.

Question #86
In general what do the 2 top columns mean, there are graphics but no words? We want to
make sure that we are not missing out on any details.
Answer
Attachment A has been updated to provide clarity for the column headings.

Question #87
Would you please send us the performance specifications for items: C5, C24, T11,T14, S6a.
They don't seem to be included in the first package.
Answer
Reference the answers to Question #52, question #53, question #54, question #55 and
question #59 for clarity on items C5, C24, TIl, T14 and S6a.

Question #88
Do you also happen to have a photo of what you expect for item C6, (Cart-Multimedia),
please?
Answer
A picture is not available of the unit.
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Question #89
Also, is "chrome" a must-have for the student desks. VS generally refrains from selling
chrome due to the negative environmental impact. Would we be allowed to offer powder-
coating finishes instead?
Answer
Powder-coated finishes are acceptable.
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(51) Chair-Student
- 13" (PreK - K) ** 0 0 835 835
- 15" (1st - 3rd) ** 0 32 0 1512 1544
-15" (lst - 3rd) with basket ** 0 32 0 1512 1544

- IS" (4th -12th) ** 1600 202 1562 962 4326
-IS" (4th - 12th) with basket ** 1600 202 1562 962 4326
- swivel options of the above **
(53) Chalr- Teacher ** 90 28 65 153 336
1(54)Chair-Guest ** 13 0 22 210 245
(56) Chair Task ** 94 29 185 114 422
(57) Chair - High Back (Prinicpal's) 2 1 3 1 7
(58) Chair- Lounge 10 12 29 29 80

(59) Musical Posture Chairs (base) 170 8 69 72 319
- Optional folding tablet arms 170 8 69 72 319

- Optional book rack 170 8 69 72 319
(511) Stool 263 0 64 152 479
(512) Alternative Seating ** 0 0 0 273 273

Subtotal 2642 340 2230 4365 9577
IlW.!.,",;t iftr.a
(Cf.) Bookshelf Adj. Height 90 19 80 170 359

(C3) Cabinet-Tall 90 0 34 104 228
(C6) Cart-Multimedia Teacher 3 0 32 8 43

(Cl) Desk - Admin 13 6 39 16 74
(C8) Cabinet Fire Proof 0 0 1 8 9
(C9) Desk-Student Trapezoid ** 331 71 348 972 1722
1(C9a)Desk-Student Rectangular ** 496 107 522 1459 2584

I(C10) Desk- Teacher ** 90 27 45 149 311

I(CI2)F1le Cabinet -4 Drw. Vertical ** 90 8 90 176 364
(C12a) File Cabinet -Lateral 0 1 0 3 4

(C13) Wardrobe 90 21 65 147 323

(C14) Rack-Drying 2 1 7 4 14

(C16) Shelving-Green ware 1 0 2 1 4

(C18)Small Safe 0 0 1 1 2

(C19)Project Storage Lockers 2 0 0 0 2

(C20)Sheet Music Cabinet 0 0 1 3 4

(C22)Storage for Flat Files 0 0 2 2 4

(C23)Metal Cabinet for Flammables 0 0 0 10 10

(C24) Cubbies ** 0 0 80 2366 2446

Subtotal 1298 261 1349 5599 8507
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(Tl) Table - work 36" X 72" "T" Base ** 33 10 22 33 98
Tl) Table - work 42" round "X" Base ** 33 10 22 33 98
(T2) Table- Computer I Printer 143 15 47 240 445
(T3) Table- Conference 5 0 71 18 94
(T5) Table- Side and End 3 0 13 14 30
T6) Horseshoe reading table ** 0 0 0 153 153
(T1) Childrens' activity table (PK-1st) ** 0 0 0 170 170
(T8) Science lab tables ** 48 0 84 0 132
(Tlo) Tables - Cafeteria wi Bench
rectangular 63 0 40 23 126
ITl4) Elementary Art Tables ** 0 0 0 24 24

Subtotal 328 35 299 708 1370
1:l1·;u":I~'

(F10)Portable Standing Choral Risers 2 0 1 4 7
(F12a)Conductor's Stand 2 1 2 4 9
(F12b)Conductor's Chair 2 1 2 4 9
(F12c)Conductor's Podium 2 1 2 4 9
(F16)Music Stands 190 0 95 142 427
(F19)Dollies and Lifts 0 0 0 0 0

Subtotal 198 3 102 158 461
TOTAL 4466 639 3980 10830 19915
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Performance Specifications

Chair - Student - S1

Standard Features

Frame
.15-gauge steel tubing welded to a 14-gauge
steel plate
•Baked on enamel
•Cantilever legs/no tilt hardware

Shell
•Textured
•Colorfastness ensured through complete
color impregnation
•Flex Back
•One-piece, contoured polypropylene shell

Glides
•Floor Saver Base by Carpin or equal

Warranty
• Lifetime

022514

* * *

Department of General Services

Features
• Optional book rack for 15" sh and up

Average Sizes
• 13" seat height recommended for Preschool

and Kindergarten
• 15" seat heights recommended for 1st grade
through 4th grade students
• 18" seat heights recommended for 4th grade
through adult students

Green Certification



Performance Specifications

Chair - Teacher - 83

Standard Features

Average Dimensions
•Overall: 20" wide x 20" deep x 32" high
•Seat: 18" wide x 17" deep
• Seat Height 16" - 19"

Frame
•Swivel tilt
•Accepts Upholstered insert on shell seaUback

•One or two piece shell
• Integral arms

Upholstery
• Interchangeable seat and back cushion
•Crypton" green fabric - medium to dark
color or equal

02,25,14

* * *
Department of General Services

Features
•Pneumatic height adjustment
•Back tension adjustment

Warranty
•Lifetime

Green Certification

2



Performance Specifications

Chair - Guest - 54

Standard Features

Average Dimensions
•Overall height: 32 3/4"
•Seat Depth: 191/2"
•Seat Width: 23"
•Overall Depth: 24"
•Overall Width: 24"
• Seat height: 17 1/2"

Frame
• 15-gauge steel tubing welded to a 14-gauge

steel plate
• Steel or wood pan inner construction
•Sled Base or four legs

022514

* * *
Department of General Services

Features
.Intergral Arm in black plastic
• Full or partia back upholstered
• Crvpton" green fabric - medium to dark color

orthe like.

Warranty
•Lifetime

Green Certification

3



Performance Specifications

Chair - Task - 56

Standard Features

Average Dimensions
•Overall width 27"
•Overall depth 27"
•Overall height 38"
•Seat width 20"
•Seat depth 18"
•Seat height 16" - 19"

•Back width 23"
•Back height 22"

Upholstery
•Crypton" Green Certified fabric - medium to dark
color or equal

022514

* * *
Department of General Services

Features
•Swivel tilt control
• Intergral arms
•Pneumatic height adjustment
• Independent seat and back movement
•Carpet or hard caster base

Warranty
•Lifetime warranty

Green Certification

4



Performance Specifications

Chair - High back - 57
(Principal only)

Standard Features

Average Dimensions
•Overall width 27"
•Overall depth 26"
•Overall height 38" to 45" (adjustable)

Features

•Swivel tilt control and carpet or hard caster base
•Aniline Leather
• Leather fully upholstered arms
•Variable back lock
•Pneumatic height adjustment
• Independent seat and back movement

Warranty
Life Time

022514

* * *
Department of General Services

Green Certification

5



Performance Specifications

Chair Lounge - 88

Standard Features

Average Dimensions
•Width: 25" to 35"
•Height" 37"
•Overall depth" 30"

Frame
•Steel/Maple Inner and Outer Construction
•Clean - out between seat and back

Features
•Tight seat and back cushion (no loose
cushions)
•Solid hard maple arms (no upholstery)
•pass 1000 Ibs. drop test
•On- site - replaceable components
•Crypton= green fabric - medium to dark color
or the like.

•Heavy duty casters, optional
•Moisture barrier
•Fire barrier

022514

* * *
Department of General Services

Warranty
•Lifetime .

Green Certification

6



02.2514

Performance Specifications

Music Posture Chair -59

Standard Features

Average Dimensions
•Overall: 20" wide x 20" deep x 32" high
•Seat height: 181/2"

Frame
• 16-gauge square tube frame

Shell
•Wear resistant polypropylene

Glides
•Floor Saver Base by Carpin or equal

* * *
Department of General Services

Features
•Optional folding tablet arms
•Optional book storage rack
•Posture back

Warranty
• Five years

Green Certification

7



* * *Performance Specifications

Stool - S-11
Department of General Services

Standard Features

Average Dimensions
•Overall: 20" wide x 20" deep x 32" high
•Seat: 18" wide x 17" deep

Frame

Features
•Static-free
.Colorfastness ensured through complete color

impregnation

• Glides
•Unpholstered seat optional

.IS-gauge steel tubing welded to a I4-gauge steel • Medium to dark color
plate •Textured front and back
•One-piece, 1/4" thick contoured shell
•Made of high-impact polypropylene

• 32"h seat and non adjustable
•Foot Ring

Glides
•Floor Saver Base by Carpin or equal

Warranty
•Lifetime

Green Certification

022514



Performance Specifications

Alternative Seating - S12

Standard Features

.New Age
• Inovative Design for elementary classroom
seating
• Functional and Durable
• Medium to dark color
• Crypton Fabric or Equal

Average Dimensions
• Elementary Students

Frame
•

TBD

Glides
• If required Floor Saver Base by Carpin or equal

0225,14

Warranty
•Lifetime

* * *
Department of General Services

Green Certification

9



Performance Specifications * * *
Bookcase wI Adj. Height Shelves- C1

Standard Features

Steel Basic Shell
• 18-gauge steel
•The reinforcement of the bottoms have (4)
threaded welded nuts to accept adjustable leveling

glides
•The liner is flush and punched to accept shelf
brackets starting approximately 8" from the
bottom of the cabinet

Wood Basic Shell
• Wood grains and colors are uniform
• 1" increment shelf adjustment
•Ends are secured with mitered mortise! tendon

and securely glued
•4"h bottom base front
•Bookcases over 42"h have one fixed shelf which
can be relocated in the field

•Backs are flush mounted to rabbeted top and
secured at ends and bottom with staples or brads

Glides
•Adjustable

Shelves
•Adjustable on 1" increments
•Weight capacity 500 pounds per shelf
•Ends are secured with mitered mortise! tendon
and securely glued

0225.14

Department of General Services

Standard Paint or Wood Finishes
•The paint is baked on to provide a scratch and
stain resistant surface on the metal bookcases
• Interior components and accessories are painted a
black finish on the metal bookcases
finish

Average Dimensions and Weight
• Depths: 12", 15" and 18"
available
•Height: varies to accommodate bid specifications

Standard Warranty
• Lifetime

Green Certification

10



Performance Specifications

Cabinet - Tall - C3

Standard Features

Plastic Laminate Basic Shell
• Look of wood grains and colors are uniform
• 1" increment shelf adjustment
•Ends are secured with mitered mortise/ tendon
and securely glued
• 4"h bottom base front
• Bookcases over 42"h have one fixed shelf
which can be relocated in the field
• Backs are flush mounted to rabbeted top and
secured at ends & bottom with staples or brads
• Backs are flush mounted to rabbeted top and

Glides
• Adjustable

Shelves
• Adjustable on 1" increments
• Optional: 3/4" thick glued-up hardwoods
without bow, sag or twist
• .A shelf holds up to 500 pounds even distribution
without deformation
•Ends are secured with mitered mortise/ tendon
and securely glued

022514

* * *
Department of General Services

Standard Paint or Wood Finishes
•Optional: Hardwood veneer stain and catalyzed
finish

Average Dimensions and Height
• Depths: 18"
•Width: 36"
•Height: varies to accommodate bid specs

Hinges and closers
·Concealed & durable hinges to support doors
with Mepla, Piano or Euro hinges. Overlay door.
·Door opener is touch latch or decorative surface
pull

Standard Warranty
• Lifetime

Green Certification

11



Performance Specifications

Cart - Multimedia - C6

Standard Features

Basic Shell
•One door
•Lockable
•Mobile
•18 x 24" rubber mat
•4" diameter ball bearing casters with 2 locking
brakes and mar resistant black rubber casters
•(4) 14" gauge steel 19" legs welded to the
cabinet
•t:ach leg allOWStor 4" Increment top sneir heIght

adjustment
•A pull out notebook computer shelf
•All welded
•20-gauge steel

Average Dimensions
• Width: 24"
• Depth:18"
• Height:26" to 42"

Standard Warranty
• Lifetime

022514

* * *
Department of General Services

Green Certification

12



Performance Specifications

Desk - Administration - C7

Standard Features

Desk Shell
•Consists of a work surface top, two end
panels, full modesty panel and wire
management channel and central locking
•20-gauge steel
•Modular components
•Maximum 30" x 66" desk shell with mobile

pedestal and optional left or right return shell

Laminate Top
•1 1/4" high pressured laminate with matching vinyl
edge

Components
•Mobile 27"h pedestal with lock wI 5th wheel for
stability. If not then add counter balance weight
•Non-handed Executive return 24" x 42'

Warranty

02,2514

* * *
Department of General Services

Standard Paint Finishes
•The paint is baked on to provide a scratch and stain
resistant surface
• Interior components and accessories are painted a
black finish

Wire Management
•Grommet on rear center of return and main desk

Green Certification

13



Performance Specifications

File Cabinet - Fire Proof - C8

Standard Features

Insulation
• 100% gypsum, reinforced by a 1" x 2" lattice
made of 14 gauge galvanized welded steel wire
between each drawer

Finish
• Electrostatic powder coating applied to all sides
• Chrome pull recessed pull with label

Drawer Interior
• High sides for hanging folder frames.
• Follower block

Warranty
• Three years

02.2514

* * *
Department of General Services

Average Dimensions
Vertical File Cabinet

• Four Drawer Vertical External Dimensions:
• Height - 52 3/4"
• Width - 17 3/4"
•Depth - 25 1/16"

• Vertical Filing Dimensions (per drawer):
• Height - 10 3/8"
• Width - 12 3/16"

• Depth - 19 11/16"

Lateral File Cabinet
• Four Drawer Vertical External Avg. Dimensions:

• Height - 53-5/8 "
• Width - 43 w" ; 37"w or 31"w

•Depth - 20"
• Lateral Filing Dimensions (per drawer):
•All 43" wide lateral drawers are 10-1/4" high x 38-3/8"
wide x 15" deep inside. (3.4 cu ft)
Other drawers sizes available if required:

•All 36" wide lateral drawers 10-1/4" high x 31-3/8"
wide x 15" deep inside. (2.8 cu ft)
·AII 3~'' wide lateral drawers are 10-1/4" high x 25-

3/16" wide x 15" deep inside. (2.2 cu ft)

14



Performance Specifications * * *
Desk - Student - Trapezoid- C9

Department of General Services

Standard Features

Frame
• Lower tubing in bright chrome that locks with a

1 inch increments

•Adjustable range of legs height 24" to 32"h Standard Warranty
• Cantilever legs with non tilt hardware • Lifetime

Green Certification

Top Glides
• Laminate or solid molded thermo set plastic with • same as student chair
pencil groove
• Work surface has curved corners and triangle
• Laminate top 3/4 inch thick

02.25.14 15



Performance Specifications

Desk - Student - Rectangular - ega

Standard Features

Frame
• Lower tubing in bright chrome that locks with a

1 inch increments

•Adjustable range of legs height 24" to 32"
• Cantilever legs with non tilt hardware

Top
• The top laminate or solid molded thermo set or
plastic Laminate
• Work surface has curved corners
• Laminate top 3/4 inch thick by 19 inches by
26 inches

022514

* * *

Department of General Services

Green Certification

Standard Warranty
• Lifetime

Glides

.same as student chair

16



Performance Specifications

Desk - Teacher - C10

Standard Features

Configuration
•Consists of a rectangular work surface top,
mobile base with locking partial locking casters.
•Modesty Panel
•Mobile Pedestal with lock

Finish
•Powder Coat is baked on chassis
•High Pressured laminate Top with Vinyl Edge

Storage - Mobile Pedestal
•Counter balance weight or 5th caster
•Baked enamel finish
•27" x22"d Mobile box/box file pedestal with
lock
•18 gauge steel shell and drawers

Green Certification

02_25_14

* * *
Department of General Services

Standard Paint Finishes
•The paint is baked on to provide a scratch and stain
resistant surface
• Interior components and accessories are painted a

black finish

Average Dimensions
·30" x 48" standard, unless otherwise specified

Standard Warranty
•Lifetime of product

17



Performance Specifications * * *
4 Drawer Vertical File Cabinet - C12

Standard Features

Basic Shell
•The top and shell is fabricated from 18 - gauge
•The reinforcement of the bottoms have (4) threaded
welded nuts to accept adjustable leveling glides
•Leveled and ganged at time on installation

Glides
•Adjustmentable. On the inside by using a 1/4"

nut runner or socket wrench

Drawer Suspensions
•Back of drawer extend clear of the front face of
interior cabinet
•Steel ball bearings per side

Green Certification

Standard Warranty
•Lifetime

022514

Department of General Services

Keying
•Keyed alike, if multiple same vendor cylinders apply

Drawers
•Constructed using 22- gauge steel, formed 7/8" thick

on the leading and trailing edges to enhance strength

Standard Paint Finishes
•The paint is baked on to provide a scratch and stain
resistant surface

•Interior components and accessories are painted a
durable finish

Sizes:
•Legal or letter width

Interlock

18



Performance Specifications

File Cabinet - Lateral - C12a

Standard Features

Shell
•18 gauge or stronger steel front back, sides, top and
bottom

* * *
Department of General Services

Paint Finishes
•Paint is baked on to provide a scratch and stain
resistant finish

•Interlock mechanism which permits only one drawer to be •Textured surface to minimize visibility of finger prints
opened at a time and smudges
•Leveled and ganged at time of installation •Medium to dark color to minimize stain and marks

•Interior shell is painted to match exterior color

• Interior components and accessories are painted in
black finishLeveling glides

•Four threaded welded nuts to accept leveling
glides that can be adjusted from inside and outside

Drawer
•Sound absorbing material inside the door to
provide quite operation
•Integral pull
•Effortless operation

•Punched drawer interior for side to side file rods
•Double wall steel drawer front construction
•Central drawer locking mechanism
•Pull out drawer up to four drawers
•Fifth drawer receding and pull - out shelf
•Drawer bottom perforated to receive drawer
dividers
•Interior accessories for hanging file folder
frames legal or letter - Front to back or side to side

•Securely attached bottom in all drawers
•Central locking mechanism

Standard Warranty
•Lifetime

Green Certification

02.2514

Drawer Suspensions
•Back of the drawer to extend clear of the front face of
the cabinet
•Retaining devise to hold the drawer in a closed
position

Locks
•The cylinders are keyed- alike to same manufacturer's
products in the room

Additional Materials:
•Wood Veneer with book match and catalyzed finish
(Principal Only)

Average Dimensions:
Steel File cabinets:
Laterals: 18"d x 30"w or 42"w with front to back file
rods for letter files

18"d x 36"w with side to side file rods

Wood File cabinets to match Principals Casegoods:
Laterals: 24"d x 30"w or 42"w with front to back file
rods for letter files" Four drawers.

24"d x 36"w with side to side file rods

19



Performance Specifications

Wardrobe - C13

Standard Features

Basic Shell
•Standard laminate construction is Grade A particle

board core finished plain interior

Leveling glides
•Four threaded welded nuts to accept

leveling glides that can be adjusted from

inside or outside the cabinets

Door
•Sound absorbing material inside the door to

provide quite operation

• Integral pull

•Effortless operation

•Medium to dark color to minimize stain and mars
•Prevent the doors from contacting an adjacent
cabinet door

·18" w door hinged right or left with mirror panel

•Concealed door hinges

•36" w two door hinged right and left

•Central locking mechanism

Warranty
•10 years warranty

02.2SJ4

* * *
Department of General Services

Interior
•Interior components and accessories are painted in
solid color malamine interior finish

Additional Materials:
•Wood Veneer with book match and catalyzed finish

Interior
•Coat rod with upper shelf 24"w

•Coat rod right & vertical divider wI adjustable shelves

left, 36"w.

Locks
•The cylinders are keyed- alike to same
manufacturer's products in the room

•Tamper proof locks

Average Dimensions:
Laminate Wardrobel Storage cabinets:
24"d x 36"w x 72"h

24"d X 23"w x 72"h

Green Certification

20



* * *Performance Specifications

Rack - Drying - C14
Department of General Services

Standard Features

Frame
•Single or double sided
•Powder coated metal frame - rust resistant
•Spacer bumpers maintain the rack's parallel
spacing in up and down position
•Mobile on casters
•Powder coated

Average Dimension
•Shelves 20" or 24"d

Warranty
•Lifetime

0225.14 21



Performance Specifications * * *
Cabinet - Flammable - C23

Department of General Services

Standard Features

Shell
•Separate and identify Class III combustibles
• 1/2" shelf adjustment on numbered slots offer the ideal
solution the wide variety
•Optional polyethylene shelf tray
•To resist aggressive chemicals, pesticide cabinets
also include polyethylene trays attached to galvanized
steel shelves and a polyethylene liner for the bottom
shelf

•Standard Cabinets: Stand alone storage, base for
stackable compact cabinets

• Compact Cabinets: Hangable, stackable, or mountable
• Graphics on hazardous information
• Replaceable 2" deep trays offer additional protection with
a slightly raised curved edge to contain spills

Average Measurements
•30 gal. 43"x 18"x 44"
•45 gal. 43"x 18"x 65"

• 12 gal. 23" 1/4 x 18" x 35"

Warranty
•Lifetime

022514 22



02.25.14

Performance Specifications

Coat Cubbies - C24

Standard Features

Overall Design
•Freestanding and Open access (doors optional)
•Stores coat, backpacks, lunchboxes, etc.. (one

unit per student).
•Largest opening for a coat with additional

openings above or below the coat storage .
•Single or duo hook at the center under top

shelf or rear interior position for a coat

Construction Details
•Stain resistant laminate finish and UV

protection
•Soft edge and corner details

Green Certification

* * *
Department of General Services

Overall Size
Depth: 15"d
Width: 60"w
Hieght: 50"h

Warranty
•Lifetime

23



Performance Specifications

Tables - T1

Standard Features

Frame
• Consists of steel feet, legs, plugs and
stretcher connectors

• Tubing will be 14 gauge,
• Seamless round steel column

• Frame will have adjustable glides

Wire Management
• Leg wire ways will be scuff resistant, high
impact and rigid

* * *
Department of General Services

Optional Features
• waterfall edge

Pedestal Bases (according to top size below):

•T and X style
•29" and or 36"h

Top Sizes
•42" round (X-base)
•36" x 72" rectangular (T-Base)

Top
• Vinyl "T" molding will be press fit into particle Warranty
board core •Lifetime

Laminate
• A 1-1/8" thick high-density particleboard core
covered with high pressure laminate backing
sheet

Green Certification

022514 24



Performance Specifications * * *
Table- Computer/Printer - T2

Standard Features

Frame
• Consists of 1-3/4" round tubular steel

feet, legs plugs and stringer connectors

• Tubing will be 14 gauge steel

• Seamless tubular steel column

• Frame will have adjustable glides

Modesty Panels
•Panel will be faced on both sides with
laminate

Top
• Waterfall edge detail to match laminate
• Gangable device for side to side table tops
• 1-1/8" thick high-density particleboard core
covered with high pressure laminate backing
• Plastic Laminate

Edge:
·Waterfall front

Privacy Screens
,11" to 23" high in durable material, as
secure to top with clamp or screw

02_2514

Department of General Services

Wire Management
• Leg wire ways will be scuff resistant for high impact

PVC plastic with two separate wire channels per leg

recessed into the table top

• Plastic grommets will be 3" in overall diameter and
rear center
• Under-Table Wire Harness will be made of easy-to-
use

Cantilevered Legs
·Cantilevered legs can be used at either end of the
table or shared leg
•Vertical wire way

• Data & cable entry from the floor or w wall in classes
•Casters available on free-standing units only

Top Sizes:
• 24"d x 36"w
• 24" x 72"w

Warranty
•Lifetime

Green Certification

25



Performance Specifications * * *
Tables - Conference- T3

Department of General Services

Standard Features

Frame
• Consists of 1-3/4" steel
• T -leg for rectangular table top
• X back for 42" diameter table top
• Seamless round steel column

• Frame will have adjustable glides

Pedestal Bases (according to top size below):

X for round top and T base style for rectangular
Base Height: 29"h with top

Average Top Sizes
• 42" diameter
• 24" d x 72"w

Top
• Vinyl "T" molding edge will be press fit into
particle Warranty
• Plastic Laminate •Lifetime
• A 1-1/8" thick high-density particleboard core
covered with high pressure laminate backing
sheet Green Certification

022514 26



* * *Performance Specifications

Side and End Table - T5
Department of General Services

Standard Features

Overall
• Plastic Laminate top
•Steel cam and pin leg connection
•Variety of shapes and sizes available
• 1 3/4" thick tops
•1 5/8" Solid wood edge

Legs
• Solid wood

Warranty
• Lifetime

Green Certification

02.25.14 27



0225.14

Performance Specifications

Tables- Horseshoe - T6

Standard Features

Frame
• Consists of 1-3/4" steel legs
• Tubing will be 14 gauge,
• Seamless round steel column

• Frame will have adjustable glides

Top
• Vinyl "T" molding edge will be press fit into
particle board core
• A 1-1/8" thick high-density particleboard core
covered with high pressure laminate backing
sheet
• Plastic Laminate

Green Certification

* * *
Department of General Services

Optional Features
• 1 1/4" vinyl edge

Base
Adjustable 23" to 32"h (ADA)

Top Size
Depths: 42" d
Widths: 72"w

warranty
•Lifetime

28



022514

Performance Specifications

* * *
Activity Table- Rectangular - T7

Standard Features

Frame
• Consists of 1-3/4" steel feet and legs
• Tubing will be 14 gauge,
• Seamless round steel column

• Frame will have adjustable glides

Top
• Top overhang
• Plastic Laminate
• A 1-1/8" thick high-density particleboard core
covered with high pressure laminate backing
sheet

Green Certification

Department of General Services

Optional Features
• 1 1/4" vinyl edge

Base
Adjustable 23" to 32"h (ADA)

Top Size
Depth: 24"d
Width: 48"w

warranty
•Lifetime

29



02,2514

Performance Specifications

Tables- Science - T8
* * *

Standard Features
Department of General Services

Top Size
Depth: 24"d
Width: 72"w

Frame
• Two rectangular, front open compartments.
• For wooden legs with corner blocking - 29"h
• Black floor grips at the bottom of each wooden
leg that stay secure when table is moved
• Chemical resistant frame Warranty
• 13 guage steel corner braces with hanger bolt, • Lifetime
nut and lock.
• Adjustable glides for precise leveling

Top
• Chemical resistant top
• Screws underneath top for secure attachment

Green Certification

30



Performance Specifications * * *
Table - Rect. Cafeteria wI Seats - T10

Department of General Services

Standard Features

Frame Average Dimensions
• The table top support apron shall be • Table height shall be either 29"
11- gauge channel steel or bow resisitant without • Rectangular table size refer to bid specifications
• Horizontal and vertical tubing shall be of
14-gauge steel

Top and Benches
• Tables top and benches shall be of solid core
nominal 3/4" thick

• Bow resistant tops

Standard Warranty
•Ten years

Casters
• Large 4" diameter heavy-duty hand rubber
swivel casters provide easy and safe
maneuverability

Edge
• Black polyurethane bonded to the table core and
the laminate surface edge as a sealed barrier to
moisture, dirt and bacteria penetration

Green Certification

Glides
• 1/2" long to prevent damage to floors

02.25.14 31



Performance Specifications

Art Table - Elementary - T14

Standard Features

Average Dimensions
• Height: 30"
•Top size: 48"d x 72"w
• 28 1/2' leg clearance below top

Frame

·Durable Steel or Solid Oak

Top
• Laminated material is chemical and liquid resistant
•Withstand pounding and bowing
• Edge detail that resist liquid pentrating the tops core

0225.14

* * *
Department of General Services

warranty
• 3 Year warranty

Green Certification

32



Performance Specifications

Standing Choral Risers -
F10

Standard Features

Average Dimensions
•Width: each 6'
• Rise of each step is 8"
• Depth of each step is 18"
•42" high side rail
• Storage depth is 27" deep x 69" high x 72"

long

Frame
• Formed and welded steel construction
• Sturdy back rail with crossbar

Top of steps
• Steps are covered with carpet

022514

* * *
Department of General Services

Additional Features
• Folds upright for storage and transport
• Fits through standard doorways
• 4th step kit to convert a 3-step to a 4-step

Warranty
• 5 Year warranty

Green Certification

33



Performance Specifications

Conductor's Stand - F12a

Standard Features

Average Dimensions
•Width: 27"
• Depth: 21"
• Desk lip is 1" high

Frame
• 391bs
• Constructed of smoked polycarbonate
• Cast iron base

02.25_14

* * *
Department of General Services

Features
•Wheeled base for easy transport
• Desk tilts from flat to vertical
• Height adjustable from 36" to 52.5"

Warranty
• 5 Year warranty

Green Certification
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Performance Specifications

Conductor's Chair - F12b

Standard Features

Average Dimensions
•Adjusts in height from 26.5" to 36.5"

Frame
.301bs

•Chair frame constructed of 14-gauge steel
• 14-gauge steel foot rest
• 5 14-gauge steel legs

Top
• Seat and back are fabric over 2" foam padding

0225.14

* * *
Department of General Services

Features
• 170 degree swivel with locking feature
• Three pre-determined depth settings: conductor,
string bass or percussion use

Warranty
• 5 Year warranty

Green Certification
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Performance Specifications

Conductor's Podium -
F12c

Standard Features

Average Dimensions
• Base: 43" wide x 38" deep x 6" high
• Upper: 32" wide x 38" deep x 6" high

Frame
• Base is constructed of 14-gauge steel
• Edging is 16-gauge steel

Top
• Constructed of 5/8" plywood or plexiglass
• Covered with dark color durable carpet

02.25.14

* * *
Department of General Services

Features
• Two 4" rubber casters recessed into front panel to
move easily from room to room
• 36" high detachable guardrail of 16-gauge steel

Warranty
• 5 Year Warranty

Green Certification

36



Performance Specifications

Music Stands - F16

Standard Features

Dimensions
•Deck height: 13.5"
• Deck width: 20"
• Heights range from 25" to 49"

Frame
• 14-gauge steel base
• 18-gauge steel upright
.t~mninum deck with aluminum attachment
bracket

02.2514

* * *
Department of General Services

Features
•Wobble-free base attachment
• LED and electric stand lights available
• Platform moves ergonomically

Warranty
• 5 Year warranty

Green Certified
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CONTRACT FOR
FF&E FOR SEVERAL DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA PUBLIC SCHOOLS

DCAM-14-NC-OI09

THIS CONTRACT FOR Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment (FF&E) FOR SEVERAL
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA PUBLIC SCHOOLS ("Contract") is entered into by and between
the District of Columbia government acting by and through its DEPARTMENT OF
GENERAL SERVICES ("Department") and INSERT CONTRACTOR ("Contractor").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Department is charged with FF&E for Several District of Columbia
Public Schools.

WHEREAS, the Department issued a Request for Proposals to engage a contractor to
provide FF&E for Several District of Columbia Public Schools.

WHEREAS, the Contractor submitted a proposal in response to the Request for
Proposals, and the Department wishes to engage the Contractor to provide the requested services.

WHEREAS, the Department desires that the Contractor perform/provide services for
One (1) year from date of award, and three (3) one year option periods.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and for good and valuable
consideration, the sufficiency and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties to this
Contract agree as follows:

CONTRACT:

Section 1 Scope of Work.

The Contractor will. be required to manufacture and deliver FF&E for District of
Columbia Public Schools for a base period and three (3) one year option periods. Approximately
twenty-one (21) schools will be newly modernized in 2014 and 2015. Fourteen (14) of these
schools are scheduled to be completed in time for the beginning of the 2014/15 school year
(August 2014), and seven (7) of these schools are scheduled to be completed in time for the
beginning of the 2015/16 school year (August 2015).

The Contractor shall be required to make furniture available at the agreed-upon prices
exclusively to dealers/installers authorized by the Department to manage logistics, and assume
schedule responsibility for complete installation of the FF&E products.

Section 2 Deliverables.

The Contractor shall perform the activities required to successfully complete the Department's
requirements and submit each deliverable to the Contracting Officer's Technical Representative
(COTR) identified in Section 6.7.

Section 3 Contract Type.



3.1 This is an indefinite delivery indefinite quantity (ID/IQ) contract with fixed unit
prices for those items of furniture described in Attachment A. The fixed unit prices may only be
adjusted if the required number of anyone item of furniture varies by more than 20%, or if the
aggregate amount varies by more than 10%.

3.2 Additional items. Additional items can be added to the requirements after contract
award if needed. However, prior to any additional item being added to the contract the
Contractor shall provide a list ofthe items along with corresponding unit prices and estimated
quantities to the Contracting Officer who will determine whether or not the proposed pricing is
reasonable before modifying the contract to add items. The Contractor shall not provide
additional items or substitute/alternate items unless and until the Contracting Officer or his
designee has provided approval in writing.

3.3 Task Orders. The Contractor shall enter into a Task Order when presented with such
by the Department. It is contemplated that individual Task Orders shall, in general, contain the
following information: (i) a description ofthe scope of work included in such Task Order; (ii) a
price and/or such other terms of compensation for the work included in the Task Order's scope
of work; (iii) the Delivery Date for the Task Order's deliverables and/or such other schedule
requirements for Task Order; and any other specific requirements of the scope of work.

3.4 Standard Task Order Provisions. Unless otherwise expressly stated in a Task Order,
all of the Provisions of the Contract shall be deemed incorporated into the Task Order as if set
forth therein.

Section 4 Contractor's Compensation.

Section 4.1 Value of Contract. The Contractor shall be entitled to receive a minimum
of Two Hundred Fifty Dollars ($250.00) pursuant to this Contract regardless of whether any
work is assigned to the Contractor via a Task Order issued under this Contract. In no event,
however, shall the Contractor be entitled to receive more than Nine Hundred and Fifty Thousand
Dollars ($950,000.00) per year for work performed pursuant to all Task Orders issued under this
Contract.

Section 5 Contract Term.

Section 5.1 Base Term. The base term of the contract shall be the date of award and
one base period and three (3) one year option periods.

Section 5.2 Option Year. The Department shall have the right to extend the term of
this Contract for three (3) terms of one (1) year; provided that the Department shall give the
Contractor preliminary written notice of its intent to exercise the option to extend the term of the
Contract thirty (30) days prior to the expiration ofthe contract. The preliminary notice does not
commit the Department to an extension. Contractor may waive the thirty (30) day notice
requirement by providing a written waiver to the Contracting Officer prior to the expiration of
the Contract.
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Section 5.3 Option Years Pricing. In the event the Department exercises its option to
extend the Contract to cover an option year, the fixed unit prices applicable to such Option Year
are set forth in Attachment A.

Section 6 Changes.

Section 6.1 Changes Authorized. The Department may, without invalidating the
contract, and without notice to or approval of any surety, order changes in the Work, including
additions, deletions or modifications. Any such change must be conveyed by the Department to
the Contractor via written Change Directive or Change Order.

Section 6.1.1 The Contracting Officer is the only person authorized to approve changes
in any of the requirements of this contract. The Contractor shall not comply with any order,
directive or request that changes or modifies the requirements of this contract, unless issued in
writing and signed by the Contracting Officer.

Section 6.1.2 In the event the Contractor effects any change at the instruction or request
of any person other than the Contracting Officer, the change will be considered to have been
made without authority and no adjustment will be made in the contract price to cover any cost
increase incurred as a result thereof.

Section 6.2 Executed Change Directive/Order Required. Changes to the Contract
may be made only by a written Change Directive or Change Order executed by the Department.

Section 6.3 Prompt Notice. In the event the Contractor encounters a situation which
the Contractor believes to be a change to this Contract, the Contractor shall provide the
Department with prompt written notice of such event and the possible impact such event could
have on cost and schedule. All such notices shall be given promptly, considering the then
applicable situations, but in no event more than ten (10) calendar days after encountering the
situation. The Contractor acknowledges that the failure to provide such notice in a timely
manner could limit or eliminate the Department's ability to mitigate such events, and thus, the
Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in the event it fails to provide prompt notice.
The Contractor shall include provisions similar to this provision in all of its subcontracts.

Section 6.4 Executed Change Orders Final. The Contractor agrees that any Change
Order executed by the Department and the Contractor constitutes its full and final adjustment for
all costs, delays, disruptions, inefficiencies, cumulative impact, accelerations, schedule impacts,
or other consequences arising from the change in question, whether a Change Directive, or a
Change Event, or from any claimed cumulative effect of changes made to the date of the Change
Order, and that no further adjustments in compensation or time shall be sought or made with
respect to the Change Directive or the Change Event giving rise to the Change Order.

Section 6.5 Failure to Agree. If the Contractor claims entitlement to a change in the
Contract, and the Department does not agree that any action or event has occurred to justify any
change in time or compensation, or if the parties fail to agree upon the appropriate amount of the
adjustment in time or compensation, the Department will unilaterally make such changes, if any,
to the Contract, as it determines are appropriate pursuant to the terms of this Contract. The
Contractor shall proceed with the Work and the Department's directives, without interruption or
delay, and may make a claim of this Contract. Failure to proceed due to a dispute over a change
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request shall constitute a material breach of the Contract and entitle the Department to all
available remedies for such breach, including, without limitation, termination for default.

Section 6.6 Indemnification. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the
Department, the District of Columbia, and the respective employees, officers and agents of either
from and against all liabilities, obligations, damages, losses, fines, penalties, claims, demands,
costs, charges, judgments and expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable attorney's fees
and disbursements) whatsoever, which may be imposed or incurred or paid by, or asserted
against the Indemnities or the Project, to the extent caused by the failure of the Contractor to
perform the work in accordance with the standard of care set forth in Section 1.2 hereto;
provided, however, that it is understood and agreed that the grant of indemnification made
hereby shall not extend to designers or builders engaged by the Department with regard to claims
or costs asserted by such designers or builders arising from the failure of the Contractor to timely
process submittals but it is understood and agreed that that the preceding limitation on the grant
of indemnification shall not bar claims asserted by the Department in its own name; and,
provided further, that the Department agrees and understands that design reviews conducted by
the Contractor are solely for the purpose of assessing whether the proposed designs comply with
the Department's functional and aesthetic requirements and that in no event shall the Contractor
be liable to the Department if the systems reflected in such designs fail to perform as intended.

Section 7 Disputes.

Section 7.1 Informal Resolution. It is the mutual desire of the parties to resolve any
disputes arising under, or otherwise related to, this Contract in an informal manner and by
consensus. Toward this end, should any such dispute arise, the parties shall use their best efforts
to resolve the dispute without the need for fonnallitigation or process of any kind. In the event
that any such dispute cannot be resolved by the parties' field representatives, the parties shall
arrange for representatives of their senior management to meet and, if possible, discuss the issue.
If this process cannot resolve the problem, then either party may initiate arbitration in accordance
with Section 7.2 of this Contract. If resolution is not reached in such manner, the Contractor shall
make a claim in accordance with this Section.

Section 7.2 Formal Dispute Resolution Procedure.

Section 7.2.1 Notice of Claim. If the Contractor wishes to assert a claim over a contract
dispute, the Contractor shall provide written notice of the claim to the Department pursuant to
procedures set forth in section 4732 of the Department's procurement rules and section 1004 of
the District's Procurement Practices Reform Act of 20 10 (PPRA).

Section 7.2.2 Contents of Notice of Claim. The notice of claim shall state the nature of
the claim, the events or circumstances giving rise to the claim, the type of relief requested, and
the amount of time or additional compensation, or other damages sought. If the amount of time,
compensation, or other damages sought is not reasonably ascertainable at the time such notice is
provided, the Contractor shall so state, explain why, and provide whatever estimates it can
reasonably provide. The notice shall state clearly that the Architect intends to assert a claim
against the Department.

Section 7.2.3 Anneal Procedures. All claims arising under or in connection with the
Contract or its breach, or relating to the Project, whether framed in contract, tort or otherwise,
and which are not resolved via the claims process may be resolved by filing an appeal with the
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District of Columbia Board of Contract Appeals in accordance with Title X of the Procurement
Practices Reform Act of 2010 (PPRA). However, if a third party brings any claim against the
Department, including, without limitation, claims of infringement of patents, copyrights or other
intellectual property rights, the Department may bring an action for defense or indemnification
against the Contractor in the court in which such claim is being litigated.

Section 8 Termination.

Section 8.1 Termination for Defaul!. The Department may terminate this Contract
for default if the Contractor fails materially to perform any of its duties or obligations under this
Contract and such failure continues for a period of at least seven (7) days after receiving written
notice of such failure from the Department.

Section 8.2 Termination for Convenience. The Department may, upon seven (7)
days written notice to the Contractor, terminate this Contract in whole or specified part, for its
convenience, whether the Contractor is in breach of this Contract or not. In the event the
Department exercises its right to terminate this Contract for convenience, the Contractor shall not
be entitled to recover for lost profits on the unperformed aspect of the work. The notice of
termination shall state the effective date of termination, the extent of the termination, and any
specific instructions. In such event, the Contractor shall promptly submit all documents and
computer files it has prepared relating to this engagement. The Contractor shall submit a
proposal for settlement of all amounts due as a result of the termination for convenience.

Section 9.0 Contracting Officer (CO). Contracts will be entered into and signed on
behalf of the District only by contracting officers. The contact information for the Contracting
Officer is:

Brian J. Hanlon
Director/Chief Contracting Officer
Department of General Services
2000 14th Street, NW, 8th Floor
Washington, DC 20009

Section 9.1 Contracting Officer's Technical Representative (COTR). The COTR
is responsible for general administration of the contract and advising the Contracting Officer as
to the Contractor's compliance or noncompliance with the contract. The COTR has the
responsibility of ensuring that the work conforms to the requirements of this contract and such
other responsibilities and authorities as may be specified in the contract. These include:

(a) Keeping the CO fully informed of any technical or contractual difficulties
encountered during the performance period and advising the CO of any potential problem areas
under the contract;

(b) Coordinating site entry for Contractor personnel, if applicable;

(c) Reviewing invoices for completed work and recommending approval by the CO if the
Contractor's prices and costs are consistent with the contractual amounts and progress is
satisfactory and commensurate with the rate of expenditure;
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(d) Reviewing and approving invoices for deliverables to ensure receipt of goods and
services. This includes the timely processing of invoices and vouchers in accordance with the
District's payment provisions; and

(e) Maintaining a file that includes all contract correspondence, modifications, records of
inspections (site, data, and equipment) and invoice or vouchers.

(f) The contact information of the COTR is:

Insert COTR Name
Title
Address
Phone
Fax
Email

Section 10 Payments.

Section 10.1 Invoicing. The Contractor shall invoice the Department on a monthly
basis. Each such invoice shall itemize all of the work performed and submitted to
dgsfm.invcs@dc.gov

Section 10.2 Right to Withhold Payments. The Department will notify the Contractor
within fifteen (15) calendar days after receiving any invoice for payment, of any defect in the
invoice or the work which may result in the Department's declining to pay all or a part of the
invoiced amount. The Department may withhold payment from the Contractor, in whole or part,
as appropriate, if:

(a) The work is defective and such defects have not been remedied; or

(b) The Department has determined that the Contractor's progress has fallen behind the
Project Schedule, and the Contractor fails, within ten calendar days of the Department's written
demand, to provide the Department with a realistic and acceptable plan to recover the delays; or

(c) The Contractor has failed to pay subcontractors promptly or has made false or
inaccurate certifications that payments to Subcontractors or Suppliers are due or have been
made; or

(d) The Contractor is otherwise in substantial breach of the Contract.

Section 10.3 The Department's liability under this contract is contingent upon the
future availability of appropriated monies with which to make payment under the contract. The
legal liability on the part of the Department for the payment of any money shall not arise unless
and until such appropriations have been provided.

Section 11 Subcontracts. The Contractor shall perform the work with its own
forces. In the event that the Contractor desires to engage one or more subcontractors to assist
with the work, it shall advise the Department and obtain the Department's written approval of
any such subcontractor. All subcontractors shall be required to comply with the insurance
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requirements set forth herein. In addition, the Contractor shall be responsible for all work
performed by the subcontractors and shall assume the risk of the subcontractors' non-
performance,

Section 11.1 Subcontracted Work. For all work, the Contractor's compensation will
be based on the rates established in Attachment A, and thus, such rates must be sufficient to
cover the cost of subcontracting in the event the Contractor plans to satisfy its contractual
obligations through subcontracting.

Section 9.2 First Source Contract

Section 9.2.1 The Contractor and all its member firms, if any, and each of its
Subcontractors shall submit to the Department a list of current employees that will be assigned to
the Contract, the date they were hired and whether or not they live in the District of Columbia.

Section 9.2.2 The Contractor and its constituent entities shall comply with subchapter
III of Chapter 11 Title 1, and subchapter II of Chapter 11 of Title 1 of the D.C. Code, and all
successor acts thereto and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. The Contractor and
all member firms and Subcontractors shall execute a First Source Contract with the District of
Columbia Department of Employment Services ("DOES") prior to beginning Work at the Project
site.

Section 9.2.3 The Contractor shall maintain detailed records relating to the general
hiring of District of Columbia and community residents. At least fifty-one percent (51%) of the
Contractor's Team and every subcontractor's employees hired after the Contractor enters into
this contract with the Department, or after such subcontractor enters into a contract with the
Contractor, to work on this project, shall be residents of the District of Columbia.

Section 9.2.4 The Contractor shall be responsible for: (i) including the provisions of
this Section 9.2 in all subcontracts; (ii) collecting the information required in this Section 9.2
from its Subcontractors; and (iii) providing the information collected from its Subcontractors in
any reports required to be submitted by the Contractor pursuant to this Section 9.2.

Section 10 Insurance

Section 10.1 Required Insurance. At all times while working under this Contract, the
Contractor shall maintain the following insurance: (i) a comprehensive general liability policy having
a policy limit of at least One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) and including completed operations
coverage; and (ii) workers compensation coverage at the statutory limit. The comprehensive general
liability policy shall include completed operations coverage and such coverage shall be maintained
for a period of at least two (2) years after the work is completed. The comprehensive general liability
policy shall be endorsed to add the District of Columbia, including, but not limited to, its Department
of General Services, and the respective agents, employees and offices of each as additional insureds.

Section 10.2 Waiver of Subrogation. All such insurance shall contain a waiver of
subrogation against the Department and its respective agents.

Section 10.3 Strength of Insurer. All insurance shall be placed with insurers that are
reasonably acceptable to the Department and with an A.M. Best's rating of not less than a then-
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current rating of "A-" or better and a financial size category of Class XV or higher. All such
insurers shall be licensed/approved to do business in the District of Columbia.

Section 11 Miscellaneous Provisions.

Section 11.1 Governing Law. This contract, and any disputes arising out of or related
to this contract, shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the District
of Columbia.

Section 11.2 Standard Contract Provisions. The Standard Contract Provisions for use
with District of Columbia Government Supplies and Services Contracts dated March, 2007
("SCP") are incorporated by reference as part of this contract.

Section 11.3 Service Contract Act Provision. The Contractor agrees that the work
performed under this Contract shall be subject to the Service Contract Act and the Living Wage
Act. The wage rates applicable to this Contract are attached as Exhibit C.

Section 11.4 Living Wage Act. The Contractor agrees that the work performed under
this Contract shall be subject to the District of Columbia Living Wage Act.

Section 11.5 False Claims Act. The Contractor shall be governed by all laws and
regulations prohibiting false or fraudulent statements and claims made to the government,
including the prescriptions set forth in D.C. Code § 2-308.14.

Section 11.6 Americans With Disabilities Act Of 1990 (ADA). During the
performance of this contract, the Contractor and any of its subcontractors shall comply with the
ADA. The ADA makes it unlawful to discriminate in employment against a qualified individual
with a disability. See 42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq.

Section 11.7 Buy American Act Provision. The Contractor shall comply with the
provisions of the Buy American Act (41 U.S.C. § lOa), including, but not limited to, the
purchase of steel.

Section 11.8 Anti-Deficiency Act.

The Department's obligations and responsibilities under the terms of the Contract are and shall
remain subject to the provisions of (i) the federal Anti-Deficiency Act, 31 U.S.C. §§1341, 1342,
1349, 1350, 1351, (ii) the D.C. Code 47-105, (iii) the District of Columbia Anti-Deficiency Act,
D.C. Code §§ 47-355.01 - 355.08, as the foregoing statutes may be amended from time to time,
and (iv) Section 446 of the District of Columbia Home Rule Act. The Contract shall not
constitute an indebtedness of the Department, nor shall it constitute an obligation for which the
Department is obligated to levy or pledge any form of taxation, or for which the Department has
levied or pledged any form of taxation. IN ACCORDANCE WITH § 446 OF THE HOME
RULE ACT, D.C. CODE § 1-204.46, NO DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA OFFICIAL IS
AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE OR EXPEND ANY AMOUNT UNDER THE
CONTRACT UNLESS SUCH AMOUNT HAS BEEN APPROVED, IS LAWFULLY
AVAILABLE AND APPROPRIATED BY ACT OF CONGRESS.
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Section 11.9 Freedom Of Information Act. The District of Columbia Freedom of
Information Act, at D.C. Official Code § 2-532 (a-3), requires the District to make available for
inspection and copying any record produced or collected pursuant to a District contract with a
private contractor to perform a public function, to the same extent as if the record were
maintained by the agency on whose behalf the contract is made. If the Contractor receives a
request for such information, the Contractor shall immediately send the request to the COTR
designated in subsection 6.7. who will provide the request to the FOIA Officer for the agency
with programmatic responsibility in accordance with the D.C. Freedom of Information Act. If
the agency with programmatic responsibility receives a request for a record maintained by the
Contractor pursuant to the contract, the COTR will forward a copy to the Contractor. In either
event, the Contractor is required by law to provide all responsive records to the COTR within the
timeframe designated by the COTR. The FOIA Officer for the agency with programmatic
responsibility will determine the releasability of the records. The District will reimburse the
Contractor for the costs of searching and copying the records in accordance with D.C. Official
Code §2-532 and Chapter 4 of Title 1 of the D.C. Municipal Regulations.

Section 11.10 Retention of Records: Inspections and Audits.

(a) The Contractor shall maintain books, records, documents and other evidence directly
pertinent to performance under the Contract in accordance with generally accepted professional
practice and appropriate accounting procedures and practices consistently applied in effect on the
date of execution of the Contract.

(b) The Contractor shall also maintain the financial information and data used in the
preparation and support of the costing and cost summary submitted to the Department and the
required cost submissions in effect on the date of execution of the Department.

(c) The Department, the District of Columbia government, the Comptroller General of the
United States, the U.S. Department of Labor and any of their authorized representatives shall
have access to the books, records, documents and other evidence held, owned or maintained by
the Contractor for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying during normal business hours and
upon advance written notice to the Contractor. The Contractor shall provide proper facilities for
such access and inspection.

(d) The Contractor agrees to include the wording of this Section in all its subcontracts in
excess of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) that directly relate to Project performance.

Audits conducted pursuant to this Section will be in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards with the results prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and established procedures and guidelines of the applicable reviewing or audit agency.

The Contractor agrees to the disclosure of all information and reports, resulting from access to
records, to any authorized representative of the Department. Where the audit concerns the
Contractor, the auditing agency will afford the Contractor an opportunity for an audit exit
conference and an opportunity to comment on the pertinent portions of the draft audit report.
The final audit report will include the written comments, if any, of the audited parties.

The Contractor shall preserve all records described herein from the effective date of the Contract
through completion and for a period of seven (7) years after a final settlement. In addition, those
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records which relate to any dispute, appeal or litigation, or the settlement of claims arising out of
such performance, or costs or items to which an audit exception has been taken, shall be
maintained and made available until seven (7) years after the date of resolution of such dispute,
appeal, litigation, claim or exception.

Section 11.11 Gratuities and Officers Not to Benefit Provisions.

Section 11.11.1 If it is found, after notice and hearing, by the Department that
gratuities (in the form of entertainment, gifts, payment, offers of employment or otherwise) were
offered or given by the Contractor, or any agent or representative of the Contractor, to any
official, employee or agent of the Department or the District with a view toward securing the
Contract or any other contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or
amending, or the making of any determinations with respect to the performance of the Contract,
the Department may, by written notice to the Contractor, terminate the right ofthe Contractor to
proceed under the Contract and may pursue such other rights and remedies provided by law and
under the Contract.

Section 11.11.2 In the event the Contract is terminated as provided in Section
11.11.1, the Department shall be entitled:

(a) To pursue the same remedies against the Contractor as it could pursue in the event of
a breach of the Contract by the Contractor; and

(b) As a penalty in addition to any other damages to which it may be entitled by law, to
exemplary damages in an amount (as determined by the Department which shall be not less than
ten times the costs incurred by the Contractor in providing any such gratuities to any such officer
or employee.

(c) No member of, nor delegate to Congress, Mayor or City Council Member, nor officer
nor employee of the District, nor officer nor employee of the Department shall be admitted to
any share or part of the Contract or to any benefit that may arise therefrom, and all Contracts
entered into by the Contracting Officer of the Department in which he or any officer or employee
of the Department shall be personally interested as well as all Contracts made by the Department
in which the Mayor or City Council Member or officer or employee of the District shall be
personally interested shall be void and no payments shall be made on any such contracts by the
Department or by any officer thereof; but this provision shall not be construed or extend to the
Contract if the share of or benefit to the member of, or delegate to Congress, Mayor or City
Council Member, or officer or employee of the District is de minimis.

Section 11.12 Ethical Standards For Office's Employees And Former Employees.
The Department expects the Contractor to observe the highest ethical standards and to comply
with all applicable law, rules, and regulations governing ethical conduct or conflicts of interest.
Neither the Contractor, nor any person associated with the Contractor, shall provide (or seek
reimbursement for) any gift, gratuity, favor, entertainment, loan or other thing of value to any
employee of the District or the Department not in conformity with applicable law, rules or
regulations. The Contractor shall not engage the services of any person or persons in the
employment of the Department or the District for any Work required, contemplated or performed
under the Contract. The Contractor may not assign to any former Department or District
employee or agent who has joined the Contractor's firm any matter on which the former
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employee, while in the employ of the Department, had material or substantial involvement in the
matter. The Contractor may request a waiver to permit the assignment of such matters to former
Department personnel on a case-by-case basis. The Contractor shall include in every subcontract
a provision substantially similar to this section so that such provisions shall be binding upon each
Subcontractor or vendor.

Section 11.13 Publicity. The Contractor shall at all times obtain the prior written
approval from the Contracting Officer before the Contractor, any of its officers, agents,
employees or subcontractors, either during or after expiration or termination of the contract,
make any statement, or issue any material, for publication through any medium of
communication, bearing on the work performed or data collected under this contract.

Section 11.14 Severability. In the event anyone or more of the provisions contained in
this Contract shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect,
such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of this Contract,
and in lieu of each such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision, there shall be added
automatically as a part of this Contract a provision as similar in terms to such invalid, illegal or
unenforceable provision as may be possible and be valid, legal and enforceable; each part of this
Contract is intended to be severable.

Section 11.15 The Contractor and the Contractor's employees shall perform the
services specified herein as independent contractors, not as employees of the government and
shall be responsible for their own management and administration of the work required and bear
sole responsibility for complying with any and all technical, schedule, financial requirements or
constraints related to the performance of this contract.

Section 12 Order of Precedence. A conflict in language shall be resolved by giving
precedence to the document in the highest order of priority that contains language addressing the
issue in question. The following documents are incorporated into the contract by reference and
made a part of the contract in the following order of precedence:

a. Contract document
b. Standard Contract Provisions
c. Contract Exhibits other than the Standard Contract Provisions
d. RFP, as amended
e. Offeror's Proposal

Section 13
contract:

Attachments. The following list of Exhibits is incorporated into the

Attachment A - Unit Price Spreadsheet & Form of Offer Letter
Attachment B - Performance Specifications
Attachment C - First Source
Attachment D - Disclosure Statement
Attachment E - Tax Affidavit
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties to this Contract has caused this Contract
to be signed by its duly authorized representative.

DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

By:
Name: Brian J. Hanlon
Title: Director
Date:

Contractor

By:
Name: _
Title:
Date: _
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